
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




City Council Goals for 2020 – Parks  
Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  
1. Identify and designate parkland on all undeveloped land within City Borders and 1 mile beyond City 
Borders (T. Majewski) 


This is something that can be looked at in 2021 and possibly incorporated into the park development 
guidelines. It will take some time to research and look at potential sites in person. I believe we are 
starting to head down the path of incorporating more resource protection with our parks. This strategy 
is only possible if we are able to grow Racetrack Park for more active use that has historically taken 
place at neighborhood parks in Stoughton.  


We emphasized that we wanted a minimum of a 50-foot-wide trail corridor connecting the 51 West 
parks. The 50-foot-wide corridor minimum was set to provide wildlife movement, based on a DNR 
recommendation, while giving trail users a better experience.  


Protecting natural resources in the Stoughton planning area is also one of the overall goals of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The objectives outlined in the plan to meet this goal are: 


a. Preserve streams, drainageways, floodplains, wetlands, wildlife habitat, steep slopes, woodland areas, 
and other natural features.  


b. Protect surface water and ground water quality.  


c. For proposed new development, consider opportunities to expand or create corridors for existing (or 
restoration of) upland habitat such prairies, oak savannas, woodlands, etc.  


d. Prevent future problems associated with developing land too close to natural areas, drainageways, 
and floodplains.  


e. Cooperate with other units of government on resources under shared authority.  


I will use this as guidance to identify future parkland unless told differently.  


 


2. Increase Parkland Dedication required acreage (T. Majewski) 


I am currently working with the City Attorney and the consultant from Baker Tilly on this as part of the 
park impact fee and fee in lieu of study. It may be possible to increase the current dedication 
requirement if we use the open space and conservancy acreage to determine our level of service. Please 
see the attached spreadsheet comparing level of services and the impact to the dedication amount for 
recent developments.   


3. Promote Stoughton as a destination for cyclists.  Goal is to attract cyclists to come through 
Stoughton. (Cyclists seek out bike friendly places when planning their routes).  


For example: 


a. Encourage a dedicated "parking lot" in downtown with bike racks 


This would be under the direction of Public Works or Planning. I have shared the City of Madison bike 
rack standards with Director Hebert and he purchased bike racks in 2020 for City Hall. We are moving 
forward with the bike rack initiative and they seemed to be well used at Lowell Park.  







City Council Goals for 2020 – Parks  
Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  
b. Include an air fill station, cycling tools (Vilas County is one place that offers this) I'll bet Wisconsin 
BikeFed has resources. 


I have seen these and they cost roughly $1700 plus the cost of a concrete pad. It would make sense to 
have on the Virgin Lake Trail and the River Trail possibly by the pedestrian bridge.  


c. Way finding signs for available public restrooms (will rotary park restroom be open every day)?? (L. 
Reeves) 


Wayfinding signs on public streets would be under direction of Public Works. However, I do have 
wayfinding sign standards that the County wants incorporated on pedestrian trails. It is scheduled to 
pave the River Trail in 2023 in the CIP and we could build in wayfinding signs into the budget. There is 
wayfinding signage incorporated into the RDA trail budget that can direct people to Rotary Park and the 
restrooms. The restrooms will have electronic locks that are set to a timer so that they can be open 
every day.   


I came across this self-assessment tool - https://bikeleague.org/bfa/quick-assessment/community. 
Many of the areas that need to be addressed need to come out of different departments. For example, 
complete street design or local ordinances promoting safety. One of the things that our department can 
do is try to develop a volunteer committee to promote biking in the Stoughton area. Many of the 
members on the Rivers & Trails Task Force bike, so it would be a good starting place to see if there is 
interest. We do have an up-to-date bicycle map that can be found on our website.  


4. Park Development Guidance Document (R. Hirsch) 


A draft of the park development guidance section of the park development guidelines has been 
completed and will be reviewed at the October Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting. The park 
development guidelines document is something that I work on when I have slack in my schedule.  


5. Path to Settlers Point (R. Hirsch) 


The Settler’s Point trail is in the CIP for 2023. I have had talks conversations with Darren Marsh from 
Dane County Parks and he will work to get the fence moved when we are ready to put the trail in.  


6. Approval of the Whitewater Park and Dam Removal (R. Hirsch). 


We are working towards addressing the concerns that we are hearing from the public regarding the 
water level impacts. We have been coordinating with Dane County regarding this. The engineers are also 
working on a video that will address the hydraulics and water level impacts from the Stoughton dam 
upstream to Lake Kegonsa.  


We will be having a debriefing meeting with the US DOT this fall regarding our BUILD grant application. 
They funded two similar projects this year, so I am hopeful that we can refine our application for 2021 
and be successful. Steve Steinhoff from CARPC plans on attending the debriefing meeting with myself.  







Level of Service Comparison


Current Level of Service - Active Use Parks Only


Park Classification Acreage
Mini Park 2.47
Neighborhood Park 66.43
Community Park 61.76
Total Active Use Land 130.66


2020 Stoughton Population (Source = CORP) 13,130


Acres per 1,000 People 9.95


Current Level of Service - Active Use Parks, Special-Use Parks, Conservancy, Open Space, and Natural Areas


Park Classification Acreage
Mini Park 2.47
Neighborhood Park 66.43
Community Park 61.76
Special-Use Park 2.44
Conservancy and Natural Areas 153.60
Total Land 286.70


2020 Stoughton Population (Source = CORP) 13,130


Acres per 1,000 People 21.84


NRPA Standard for Active Use Lane per 1,000 People 10.50







Park System Acreage 


Mini Parks Acres
Criddle 0.22
Division Street 0.76
Riverside 1.36
Roby/Page 0.13
Subtotal 2.47


Neighborhood Parks Acres
Bjoin 7.23
Dunkirk 1.31
East Side 1.95
Lowell Street 14.96
Nordic Ridge 6.62
Norse 8.00
Schefelker 10.41
Veteran's 3.93
Virgin Lake 6.96
Westview Ridge 5.06
Subtotal 66.43


Community Parks Acres
Mandt 33.20
Racetrack 28.56
Subtotal 61.76


Total Active Use Park Acreage 130.66


Special Use Parks Acres
Heggestad 1.29
Rotary 0.71
Victorian Garden 0.44
Subtotal 2.44


Conservancy/Natural Areas Acres
Amundson Park 52.55
Nottingham Park 1.10
Roby/Page Conservancy 5.66
Settler's Point Parkland 41.65
Virgin Lake Natural Area 10.50
Yahara River Natural Area 42.14
Subtotal 153.60


Total Special Use & Conservancy Acreage 156.04


Total Park, Special Use, & Conservancy Acreage 286.70







Fee In Lieu of Land Dedication 


Baker Tilly Study


Dwelling Type Persons per Household (Census Data) 51 West Development Example 
Single Family 2.78
Multi Family 1.93 Housing Breakdown
Group Quarters 1.00 Single Family Units 12


Multi Family Units 350
Level of Service Square Feet/Person Acres/Person Group Quarter Units 0
10.5 acres/1000 People (NRPA Standard, Baker Tilly Rec.) 457.38 0.0105
9.95 acres/1000 People (Current Active Use Parkland LOS) 433.422 0.00995 Park Dedication Comparison Square Feet Acres
21.84 acres/1000 People (Current All Parkland LOS & Open Space LOS) 951.3504 0.02184 Current Requirement 531416 12.19963269


10.5 acres/1000 People (NRPA Standard, Baker Tilly Rec.)
Level of Service Square Feet/Unit Acres/Unit Single Family Units 15258.1968 0.35028
Current 1468.00 0.033700643 Multi Family Units 308960.19 7.09275
10.5/1000 People (NRPA Standard, Baker Tilly Rec.) Group Quarter Units 0 0
Single Family 1271.5164 0.02919 Total 324218.3868 7.44303
Multi Family 882.7434 0.020265 9.95 acres/1000 People (Current Active Use Parkland LOS)
Group Quarters 457.38 0.0105 Single Family Units 14458.95792 0.331932
9.95 acres/1000 People (Current Active Use Parkland LOS) Multi Family Units 292776.561 6.721225
Single Family 1204.91316 0.027661 Group Quarter Units 0 0
Multi Family 836.50446 0.0192035 Total 307235.5189 7.053157
Group Quarters 951.3504 0.00995 21.84 acres/1000 People (Current All Parkland & Open Space LOS)
21.84 acres/1000 People (Current All Parkland LOS & Open Space LOS) Single Family Units 31737.04934 0.7285824
Single Family 2644.754112 0.0607152 Multi Family Units 642637.1952 14.75292
Multi Family 1836.106272 0.0421512 Group Quarter Units 0 0
Group Quarters 951.3504 0.02184 Total 674374.2445 15.4815024


KPW Development Example


Housing Breakdown
Single Family Units 152 (Includes PD Units)
Multi Family Units 43
Group Quarter Units 100 (Includes Senior Living)


Park Dedication Comparison Square Feet Acres
Current Requirement 433060 9.941689624
10.5 acres/1000 People (NRPA Standard, Baker Tilly Rec.)
Single Family Units 193270.4928 4.43688
Multi Family Units 37957.9662 0.871395
Group Quarter Units 45738 1.05
Total 276966.459 6.358275
9.95 acres/1000 People (Current Active Use Parkland LOS)
Single Family Units 183146.8003 4.204472
Multi Family Units 35969.69178 0.8257505
Group Quarter Units 95135.04 0.995
Total 314251.5321 6.0252225
21.84 acres/1000 People (Current All Parkland & Open Space LOS)
Single Family Units 402002.625 9.2287104
Multi Family Units 78952.5697 1.8125016
Group Quarter Units 95135.04 2.184
Total 576090.2347 13.225212


Nordic Ridge Development 


Housing Breakdown
Single Family Units 164
Multi Family Units 97
Group Quarter Units 0


Park Dedication Comparison Square Feet Acres
Current Requirement 383148 8.795867769
10.5 acres/1000 People (NRPA Standard, Baker Tilly Rec.)
Single Family Units 208528.6896 4.78716
Multi Family Units 85626.1098 1.965705
Group Quarter Units 0 0
Total 294154.7994 6.752865
9.95 acres/1000 People (Current Active Use Parkland LOS)
Single Family Units 197605.7582 4.536404
Multi Family Units 81140.93262 1.8627395
Group Quarter Units 0 0
Total 278746.6909 6.3991435
21.84 acres/1000 People (Current All Parkland & Open Space LOS)
Single Family Units 433739.6744 9.9572928
Multi Family Units 178102.3084 0
Group Quarter Units 0 0
Total 611841.9828 9.9572928





		Council Goals

		Parkland Level of Service Comparison

		Level of Service Calculation

		Park Acreage

		Dedication Example 








Director’s Report 
October 2020 


ADA Transition Plan 


- Finalized the prioritization report and sent it to MSA for review.  
- Worked with DPW to complete target years for deficiencies.  


High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal Project 


- The disconnects have been removed from inside the utility room at the baseball diamond.  This 
created a 4’’ hole in the roof of the utility room that was patched by the City’s building 
maintenance person.  


- The school district informed us that if we move forward with the plan to remove the top of the 
lights and install a nesting platform that the City would be responsible for the pole and nest 
moving forward. The City should not be responsible for an item on school district property, so 
we will be removing the pole. I notified a citizen who I have been communicating with about the 
osprey and told him that we will be removing the pole due to the school district’s ruling. He 
emailed the school district officials to see if they would reconsider. Hooper will be removing the 
lights within the next two weeks.  


- Worked with the City Attorney to create an agreement that states that the City no longer has 
any responsibility with the lights once the poles are removed.  


Park Impact Fees & Fee in Lieu of Study 


- Worked with Laura Callan from Attorney Dregne’s office on the parkland value. Laura had a 
formula that was used by other municipalities to calculate the value. I completed the calculation 
and sent it to her for review. I am awaiting her response.  


- Alder Majewski had a council goal to increase the parkland dedication requirement. The 
consultant from Baker Tilly had the level of service set at 10.5 acres per 1000 people in the draft 
report. I sought advice from Attorney Callan regarding this and she said that we could include 
open space areas and conservancies to determine our level of service. The consultant from 
Baker Tilly is hesitant to say this is possible. The next step is to get the response from Attorney 
Callan regarding the parkland value and have a conference call that includes her and the 
consultant from Baker Tilly.  


Riverfront Project 


- Had a coordination meeting with Dane County.  
- Attended permitting meeting with the DNR.  
- Attended meeting with attorneys for survey work in the millpond area 
- Attended meeting with Strand regarding survey work in the millpond area  
- Attended meeting with Strand regarding prelim design for RDA trail, bank restoration, and 


pedestrian bridge.  
- Received notification that we were successful in our grant application for the pedestrian bridge. 


We have been tentatively awarded $138,000 in LWCF where we can use the WEDC grant as a 
match.  


- Scheduled a debriefing meeting with the DOT on 11/20 regarding the BUILD grant.  


Rotary Park Project 







Director’s Report 
October 2020 


- I am still unable to get an excavator to meet about the project. It will likely need to be re-bid this 
fall and put on the schedule for construction in the spring. Rotary needs to spend their grant 
funding by May.  


Bjoin Park  


- Met with Jeff Moyer about scoping out the basketball court.  
- I wrote and published a notice in the Courier Hub for the concrete slab. No contractors 


contacted me after it being noticed, so I moved forward with Moyer’s quote which is 
reasonable. The court will be constructed before winter.  


- I ordered an adjustable hoop for the court that matches the ones that were installed at Norse 
Park earlier this year.  
 


Misc.  


- I met with the skateboarder and his mother about improvements to the skate park. He had a list 
of things he would like to see that could be done for a small amount before the park is re-built 
as part of the Mandt Park Master Plan. He is going to meet again with an owner of a 
skateboarding shop in Madison who has helped organizer volunteers to do these type of 
improvements. The next step is for me to contact a few of the service organizations in town to 
see if they would like to help participate in the project.   


- I scheduled an upcoming meeting with Jon Augspurger and potential volunteers to build a single 
track course at Lowell Park. Jon is the president of a Dane County mountain biking club. His 
advice is that it takes little money to build a non-professional course and it can get overgrown 
pretty quickly if it is abandoned. It is not a concern if it becomes overgrown because it will look 
like it never existed. The thought behind this is to develop a volunteer group prior to the 
development of a professionally laid out course.  


- Ordered a dumpster for the community garden. This makes it easier for the gardeners to clear 
their plots.  


- I scheduled and met with the garden volunteers to see how the season went and what needs to 
be changed. There were more abandoned plots this year than the previous year. The volunteers 
think it was due to the pandemic where people were pent up in their homes and needed 
something to do. Once the weather turned better the plots became abandoned.  I updated the 
rules and sent them out to the volunteers for review.  


- Coordinated with a Boy Scout troop to help with garden clean-up. They will assist gardeners on 
10/17 and cleanup any remaining plots the following Saturday.  


- Attended the Friends of the Stoughton Area Youth Center meeting on 9/24.  
- Created a presentation for a staffing request and presented it to the Personnel Committee 


Meeting on 9/24. 
- Presented the CIP budget to the CIP Committee on 9/24.  
- Completed the Council Goals document.  
- Completed the youth center’s monthly and quarterly expense reports for Dane County.  
- Reviewed trail and park concepts for the east side that Gary Becker worked on. The trail would 


transverse from Cooper’s Causeway south to the riverfront development.  







Director’s Report 
October 2020 


- The engineers working on the 51 West development were unable to access the land due to the 
corn not being cut. This has stalled their progress on laying out stormwater management areas.  
 








PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
 
Tuesday September 15, 2020 at 6:00 pm  
 
This is a virtual meeting. Please use the information below to attend: 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/488914301 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (669) 224-3412 
Access Code: 488-914-301 
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Mayor Tim Swadley and 
Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guests: Bob Dvorak, Steve Tremlett, Ron Mckittrick, Fred Hundt 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:01 pm.  
 
Motion to approve the Minutes from August 15, 2020 by Hirsch seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication; none 
 
Directors Report-Director Glynn highlighted Gazebo Music events and tutoring at Youth Center 
 
51 West Development Parkland Dedication-Steve Tremlett gave an overview of 51 North Concept, 
questions and comments regarding parkland dedication, park access and trail system options were 
discussed. 
 
Park Design Guidelines-Director Glynn gave an overview of the Draft proposal of the Park Design 
Guidelines 
 
 
Future Agenda Items 
Park Design Guidelines 
Whitewater Park decision making 
 
 
Motion to adjourn by Heili seconded by Hirsch  
Motion carried unanimously at 7:53 pm. 
 








 


 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


Park Design Guidelines 
  







 


Contents 
Overview ................................................................................................................................................. 4 


Purpose ............................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mission Statement............................................................................................................................... 4 


Goals ................................................................................................................................................... 4 


General Planning and Design Policies....................................................................................................... 4 


Site Selection and Planning Principles ...................................................................................................... 5 


Park Design and Development Guidelines ................................................................................................ 5 


Community Parks ................................................................................................................................ 6 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 6 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 7 


Neighborhood Parks ............................................................................................................................ 7 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 7 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 7 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Mini Parks ........................................................................................................................................... 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 8 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 8 


Special-Use Parks ................................................................................................................................. 8 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ......................................................................................................... 9 


Trail Corridors & Greenways ................................................................................................................ 9 


Description ...................................................................................................................................... 9 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ........................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Consider .................................................................................................... 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ....................................................................................................... 10 







 


Natural Areas .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Description .................................................................................................................................... 10 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ...................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Consider ............................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Avoid ................................................................................................... 11 


Guidance for Developers ....................................................................................................................... 11 


Design and Review Process for City Parks .......................................................................................... 11 


Site Evaluation Report ....................................................................................................................... 13 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting ...................................................................................... 14 


Minimum Criteria .......................................................................................................................... 14 


Base Criteria .................................................................................................................................. 15 


 


  


  







 


Overview  
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to provide direction to staff, landscape architects, contractors and 
developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, trails, and 
recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Only improvements where Stoughton Parks and Recreation and/or Stoughton Public Works will assume 
operations and maintenance activities are subject to these guidelines.   


Mission Statement  
The City of Stoughton seeks to provide a park and recreation system that will: meet the needs of our 
current residents and future generations; preserve and protect the City’s open space, water, historical 
and natural resources; and provide a park and recreation program that is designed to enhance our 
quality of life.  


Goals 
· Provide guidance to developers for park site selection and development 
· Create a standard for parks, and park equipment and amenities 


General Planning and Design Policies 
The following policies are intended to provide guidance on the planning and design of all parks and 
recreation facilities in Stoughton: 


· Incorporate public input into park master planning and design to ensure that community needs 
and issues are addressed. Public outreach should include nearby neighbors, likely park users, 
community members, and partner agencies in the park design process. 


· Involve maintenance and recreation program staff in the design process so that maintenance 
and programming requirements are considered during site selection, design, and development. 


· Consider the layout of the surrounding neighborhood when placing park amenities. Situate 
lighting and noise-producing amenities away from the neighboring homes to minimize conflicts.  


· Locate amenities such as playground equipment, picnic shelters, and basketball courts to 
provide visibility from adjoining streets which will promote safety, minimize vandalism, and 
encourage use.  


· Incorporate American with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines into all new parks to facilitate 
site access, circulation, and facility use for people of all ages and abilities.  


· Incorporate new technologies, sustainable design, and conservation-smart elements into all 
park and recreation facility designs to facilitate operational efficiency. This commitment may be 
demonstrated through the use of green building technologies, alternative power, low water-use 
fixtures, automated sport field lighting, and storm water treatment techniques. 


· Incorporate public art and interpretive elements into parks to contribute to park identity and 
character. Interpretative elements can be incorporated into parks of all types to raise 
community awareness about the local environment and history. Art elements are well-suited for 
community parks, citywide parks, urban open space, or other community-serving areas. 







 


· Conduct a cost impact analysis prior to design and development of all new major recreation 
facilities. 


Site Selection and Planning Principles  
Consistency  


Choose park and trail locations that are consistent with the spirit and intent of the Department’s 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and with other policies 
and plans adopted by City Council.  


Environmental Protection  


Locate parks and open spaces in coordination with surrounding new developments, where reasonable, 
to preserve and protect the water quality and wildlife habitat of riparian corridors, wetlands, and flood 
plains and to integrate preserved open space and natural areas into developed areas for both visual 
diversity and the definition of neighborhood character. Protect and enhance natural resources that have 
outstanding recreation, conservation and educational value to the public.  


Accessibility and Connectivity  


Connections are the key to creating an open space system that integrates all parts of the city into a 
cohesive whole. Benefits of trail development range from the preservation of linear open spaces to the 
promotion of active, healthy lifestyles to the creation of an alternative corridor for transportation. 
Ideally, parks and open space should be physically connected to provide continuous ribbons of green 
space woven throughout the city, maximizing value to wildlife and, where appropriate, to commuters 
and recreational users.  


1. Residents should be able to leave their homes and readily access the parks and open space 
system in their neighborhoods 


2. Design bicycle and pedestrian transportation systems for efficiency and connectivity around all 
parks and open spaces.  


Park Design and Development Guidelines  
Park design and development guidelines are provided for each park classification. These guidelines 
include the following for each classification: 


Description 


A definition is presented to describe each park type. This section also describes the typical length of use 
and means of travel to each type of park. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


Include recommendations for site size, site access, street frontage, parking, etc. 


Features & Amenities to Consider 


These elements should be considered during the master planning and design process for inclusion in all 
new parks of this classification.  







 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 


These elements are not compatible with the park classification and should not be included in the design 
and development of these types of parks.  


 


Community Parks  
Description 
Community parks are areas of diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods. Community 
parks are typically 10 acres or larger but may vary depending on facilities offered.  


Typical community park users: 


· Come from within 1 to 2 miles of the park; 
· Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; and  
· Visit the park for 1 to 3 hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· At least two-thirds of the site should be available for active recreation use. Adequate buffers or 


natural open space areas should separate active recreation use from homes.  
· The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
· Parking requirements should be based upon the facilities provided at the site. Generally, 50 off-


street spaces per ballfield are required, plus an additional 5 spaces per acre of active use areas.  
· Access to the site should be provided via a collector or arterial street with sidewalks and bicycle 


lanes, and trail corridor or greenway system when possible.   


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Playgrounds  
· Open turf area for unstructured play 
· Designated sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer. Fields may be in a complex within the 


park.  
· Looped pathway system 
· Large picnic shelters 
· Permanent restrooms  
· Tennis and Pickleball courts. Courts may in a complex within the park.  
· Basketball courts 
· Field lighting 
· Skate park 
· Splash pad  
· Off-leash dog area 
· Community gardens  
· Concessions or vendor space  
· Interpretive signage 
· Public art 
· Indoor recreation center 







 


· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· Storage or maintenance buildings; if visible, these should be architecturally compatible with 


other park elements. Any exterior work areas should be screened from view.  
· Off-Street Parking  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· N/A 


 


Neighborhood Parks  
Description 
Neighborhood parks serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. Neighborhood 
parks typically include areas for active recreational use such as field or court games and playgrounds. 
Typical size is between 3 to 10 acres. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· At least 50% of site should be relatively level and usable providing space for both active and 


passive uses.  
· The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
· Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks and trail corridor/greenway 


system when possible. Neighborhood parks fronting on arterial streets should be discouraged.  
· On-street parking should be provided. Larger sites may include off-street parking with the 


amount depending on the facilities provided at the site.  
· Active and noise producing facilities, such as basketball courts, should be located at least 100 


feet from nearby homes or property zoned for residential use.  
· Each neighborhood is different and some consideration to making neighborhood parks different 


is important.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Playgrounds  
· Open turf area for unstructured play 
· Basketball (full or half) court 
· Volleyball court 
· Multi-use fields for practice  
· Picnic tables 
· Small picnic shelter  
· Pathway connecting park elements  
· Interpretive signage  
· Natural area (if present at site) 
· Portable or permanent restrooms  
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· On-street parking 


 







 


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a neighborhood or 


community group 
· Indoor recreation center  
· Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or highly specialized 


maintenance  
· Sports fields for league play  
· Off-street parking  


 


Mini Parks  
Description 
Mini parks are used to address limited, isolated, or unique recreation needs of concentrated populations 
such as tots or senior citizens. Typical size is 1 acre or less but parks may be categorized as mini parks 
simply based on the type and quantity of facilities they offer.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· All or most of site should be relatively level providing space for both active and passive uses.  
· The site should have at least 25% of park boundary on street frontage.  
· Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Open air shelter or small event space 
· Children’s playground including specialized play equipment such as tot lots  
· Half basketball court  
· Community garden 
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Off-street parking 
· Permanent restrooms  


 


Special-Use Parks  
Description  
Special use parks are areas for specialized or single purpose recreational activities such as golf courses, 
campgrounds, nature centers, and skate parks. They may also be used to designate areas that are 
primarily used as event space, general gathering areas, expanded trail corridors, or plaza space. There 
are no set standards for size.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines  
· Site size depends on intended use, but should be sufficient to accommodate the special use and 


necessary support facilities.  
· Access to the site should generally be provided by means of a collector arterial street.  







 


· The site should connect to trail corridors if possible 


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Special use facility or facilities  
· Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
· Landscape improvements including tree planting  
· On-street or off-street parking  
· Pathway system 
· Seating  


Features & Amenities to Avoid  
· Uses that conflict or detract from the special use 


 


Trail Corridors & Greenways  
Description 
Trail corridors and greenways include developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less-
developed greenways that follow linear features such as abandoned railroad rights-of-way, canals, 
power lines, creeks and streams, and other elongated features. 


Typical trail and greenway users: 


· May come from throughout the city; 
· Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
· May use the trail and greenway to travel to a park or other community site; and  
· May visit the trail for one or more hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· Trail corridors should generally follow continuous special feature strips, with a minimum 


corridor width of 50 feet. 
· Trail corridors should link to and be incorporated to neighborhood and community parks to 


provide a linear park system.  
· Trail corridors should link to regional trail systems.  
· Due to the shape, configuration, and potential for user noise in these parks, user impacts on 


adjoining neighbors should be considered. Fences or landscaping may be used to provide some 
privacy for neighbors, but the provision of these features also should consider user safety.  


· Paved pathways should be designed to accommodate maintenance and patrol vehicles.  
· The amount and type (on-street or off-street) of parking provided at trailheads will depend on 


facilities at the site and anticipated trail use.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
· Paved pathways 
· Viewpoints 
· Seating areas 
· Picnic tables 







 


· Wayfinding signage 
· Trailhead or entry kiosk  
· Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, turf areas 
· Maintained natural vegetation 
· Fences, landscaping, or other features to control access near adjoining residential areas 
· Parking at major trailheads  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
· Active use facilities such as sport fields and paved courts (only in trail corridor areas) 


Natural Areas 
Description  
Natural areas may preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas, such as wildlife habitats, stream 
and creek corridors, or unique and/or endangered plant species. Public access may be limited as these 
sites, white often include wetlands, steep hillsides, or other similar spaces. Some natural areas may be 
managed secondarily to provide passive recreation opportunities.  


Typical recreation user of natural areas: 


· Comes from throughout the city; 
· Arrives by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
· Uses a trail within the natural area; and  
· Visits the area for an extended time 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
· Site size should be based on natural resource needs. Acreage should be sufficient to preserve or 


protect the resource.  
· Emphasis for acquisition should be on lands offering unique features that have the potential to 


be lost to development. 
· An analysis should be made to determine if unique qualities and conditions exist to warrant 


acquisition.  
· Development and site improvements should be kept to a minimum, keeping the park’s emphasis 


on the natural environment, interpretive features, and educational facilities. 
· Natural open space areas should be managed and maintained for a sense of solitude, 


separation, or environmental protection.  
· Site use should be limited to the numbers and types of visitors the area can accommodate while 


still retaining its natural character and the intended level of solitude.  
· Where feasible, public access and use of these areas should be encouraged, but environmentally 


sensitive areas should be protected from overuse.  
· Off-street parking should be considered for larger natural areas if a trail is located within the 


site. The amount will depend upon the anticipated trail use. Otherwise, on-street parking should 
be provided.  


Features and Amenities to Consider 
· Interpretive signage 







 


· Small picnic shelter 
· Limited picnic areas 
· Trail and pathway system  
· Trailhead or entry kiosk 
· Viewpoints 
· Interpretive or education facilities  
· Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
· On-street or off-street parking (depending on anticipated amount of site use) 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 
· Depends on site 


Guidance for Developers 
Sustainable communities include parks and open spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy 
recreation, connect with nature, and gather with neighbors. Thanks to the foresight of and vision of 
community leaders, citizens, and land developers, Stoughton boasts an extensive park system. To 
continue with this standard, a parkland dedication is required for developments.  


The City depends on neighborhood and community parks to meet the recreational needs of its citizens. 
Land development should meet the needs of the residents. These classes of parks are dedicated when 
land is developed and are the basis of the sections below.  


Design and Review Process for City Parks 
The process described below is the typical sequence of reviews conducted with the City of Stoughton’s 
Director of Parks & Recreation and the consultant. This process encompasses the majority of projects 
and will serve as a general framework for providing direction regarding the specifics of the design and 
construction documents. The outline below is the basic format and can be adapted as needed for special 
case scenarios. Private sector development, renovation, or special use areas should follow this process 
to the closest extent possible. Other services and procedures may be required depending on the scope 
of the project.  


Nothing in this document shall be construed as a requirement or endorsement for the consultant to 
provide services for white they are not qualified or appropriately licensed. The consultant shall exercise 
their professional judgement regarding design specifics. All projects shall conform to local, state, and 
federal codes, laws, and ordinances.  


1. Scoping/Programming Meeting  
 
This meeting will occur during the scoping phase, and prior to the execution of a consultant’s 
conceptual plan for the development is completed. The Parks and Recreation Director will 
convey the needs outlined in the city’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, city’s 
Comprehensive Plan, county’s Park and Open Space Plan, and other relevant plans. The City will 
also provide any available information regarding site criteria selection and the Site Evaluation 
Report.  
 


2. Conceptual Plan Review  







 


 
The consultant will prepare the Site Evaluation Report for this meeting with the Parks and 
Recreation Director. The intent at this time will be to review possible site selections for the 
parkland within the development. These conceptual plans will be sketch quality, fairly abstract 
diagrams that demonstrate the location, arrangement, size and spacing of the park. The 
intention is to identify the opportunities and constraints of various layouts. Once a site is 
selected, it will need to be approved by the Parks & Recreation Committee.  
 


3. Site Master Plan Review  
 
The consultant will prepare schematic design drawings which will setup the preliminary 
arrangement of programmatic and physical components, including hardscape elements, 
accessibility, circulation, drainage, grades and slopes, planting scheme, furnishings, and play 
equipment. This is intended to be a collaborative process and based on the complexity of the 
project, there may be several iterations of schematic design solutions. The reviews may include 
sketch quality drawings or hardline drawings.  
 
Once a schematic design is resolved, the consultant shall prepare a final line drawing. If the 
project scope includes a public meeting, the consultant will prepare rendered presentation 
graphics. A budget work sheet with realistic cost estimates for any site improvements must be 
included with the plan. All Park Master Plans must be adopted by City Council. 
 


4. Design Development/65% Construction Documents  
 
The consultant will prepare a set of drawings that will create the framework for the final 
drawings and that start filling in the specifics of the design. A meeting will be held to review the 
progress of the 65% construction drawings, and will ascertain that the schedule and budget of 
the project is on track and intent of the design is being followed.  


 


5. 95% Construction Documents  
The consultant will prepare and submit a set of construction drawings to the 95% complete 
stage. The drawings shall be prepared to a level that is considered biddable and buildable. A 
meeting will be held to review the submittal to ascertain that all details and specifications 
required are included in the drawings. This will allow the City to identify any particulars that 
need clarification or correction.  
 
A preliminary cost estimate shall also be prepared by the consultant at this stage.  
 
If the project will be publicly bid, the consultant shall prepare and submit a contract manual and 
associated bidding documents to the Parks and Recreation Director.  
  


6. Final Documents for Construction Documents and Pricing/Bidding  


Commented [DG1]: The planning process for new parks 
has not had a 


Commented [DG2]: This is needed and was not done 
when Nordic Ridge Park was developed.  


Commented [DG3]:  







 


After approval of the 95% plans, specifications and estimate, the consultant will prepare and 
submit final construction documents.  


 
The consultant will coordinate the distribution of plan sets, participate in the pre-bid meeting, 
review the bids, prepare a bid tabulation, and a recommendation of award, and verify the 
contract and agreement documents.  
 


7. Pre-Construction Meeting  
 
Prior to the start of construction, all parties will meet to review the specifics of the construction 
process. 


 
 
Site Evaluation Report 
Once a site within a development is selected by the developer for the parkland dedication, the 
developer should prepare a site evaluation report. The report shall include and follow the following 
format: 


1. Title Page  
 


2. Executive Summary  


The executive summary summarizes the type and size of the planned park; briefly describes the 
sites; Indicated which site was selected and the rationale for choosing the selected site.  


3. Site Selection Process 


Explains the site selection criteria and the criteria rating and weighting schemes. Include the 
following graphics in this section: 


o Context map showing site(s) and its immediate surroundings 
o Location map showing all of the sites that were considered and key landmarks or 


reference points such as major streets 
o Aerial photography of each site 
o Photographic panoramas  
o Site topographic map  


 
4. Comparative Evaluation of Candidate Sites 


Describe the strengths and weaknesses of each individual site. Include the following graphics: 


o Site evaluation matrix 
o Tabulated data summarizing the individual site evaluations allowing for comparison 


among the alternative sites 
 


5. Conclusion  







 


Briefly summarize the site selected, process used, and determination.  


6. References 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting  
 Tis site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space for new parks and public 
recreation areas. 


Minimum Criteria  
All sites must meet all of the “base” or threshold criteria listed below to be considered for further 
evaluation. This step ensures the sites meet at least the minimum standards for: 


Site Size 


The minimum land dedication must provide 80% of the land required per the parkland dedication 
requirement. Trail corridors are counted towards the parkland dedication requirement. Storm water 
retention ponds located within a park do not count towards the land dedication.  


Slopes 


Land dedicated for parkland shall have slopes of 5% or less in 50% of the parkland for a neighborhood 
park and 75% of the parkland for a community park. Land can be graded by the developer to provide 
less slope.  


Contiguous Land  


Land shall be dedicated in a contiguous parcel. An exception to this is if the development is fragmented 
by an arterial street, highway, or railroad.  


Street Frontage  


A minimum of 50% of the perimeter of the land dedicated must have street frontage.  


Existing Conditions  


The site shall not be encumbered by overhead utility lines, easements of any type, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, or toxic conditions which may limit the opportunity for park and recreation 
development.  


Pedestrian and Bikeway Linkages  


Parks should be linked by an off-road trail corridor. The City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 
conceptually outlines trail routes and should be taken into consideration when planning routes. Regional 
trail connections shall be protected and be incorporated into the park layout when necessary. The 
regional trail map can be found in Dane County’s Parks & Open Space Plan.   


Park Dedication & Access Timeline  


When park development fees start to be collected, the parkland should be dedicated so the fees can be 
utilized in a timely manner.  


Commented [DG4]: This will help staff and alderpersons 
judge parkland dedication for developments.  


Commented [DG5]: What is the acceptable amount? 
Developers may need some flexibility for their development 
to work and they are required to pay the park fee in leiu of. 
On the other hand, we are currently short parkland based 
on the NRPA standard.  


Commented [DG6]: Slopes of 5% or less allow for ADA 
access which is needed to programmed features of the park 
such as restrooms, playgrounds, and sport courts.  


Commented [DG7]: I have looked at numerous design 
guidelines from across the country. There is no set standard. 
They vary from 100% to no requirement. The benefits and 
drawbacks are outlined in the weighting system document. 







 


 
Base Criteria  
Dedication Percent (20 Points) 


80-85 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 1 point  


85-95 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 7 points 


95-100 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 14 points 


Over the parkland dedication requirement = 20 points  


 


Slopes (15 points)  


Sloped (over 5 percent slope over 50 percent of the site) = 1 point 


Moderate (between 2-5 percent slope over 75 percent of the site) = 7 points  


Flat (less than 2 percent slope over 75 percent of the site) = 15 points  


 


Street Frontages (20 points) 


50-70 percent Street Frontage = 5 point  


70-85 percent Street Frontage = 10 points  


85-100 percent Street Frontage = 20 points  


 


Linkage (15 points) 


Park is linked to other parks with off-road trail = 1 point 


Park is linked with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor = 7 points 


Park is linked with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor = 15 points  


 


Bonus Criteria 


Park size is over 10 acres = 5 points 


Park can be expanded with future development = 2 points  


Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Waterfront access = 5 points  







 


Healthy trees = 5 points   


 


 


 


Commented [DG8]: This will need to be discussed and 
refined 







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Background 


The City needs to establish criteria to evaluate the relative value and public benefits of potential park or 
open space acquisitions. The criteria outlined below are just a few of the possible factors to decide or 
determine how suitable a site is for parkland. The points allocated to each of the criteria will determine 
how valuable each criteria are. The goal is to develop an objective system for deciding if a site is suitable 
for a park or not.  


 


Dedication Percent 


National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) standards recommend a minimum of 10.5 acres of 
dedicated parkland per 1000 residents. The parkland dedication is setup to achieve this based on a 
calculation using census household size data for Stoughton. If the dedication is 100% fulfilled, then the 
parkland dedication will fully meet the NRPA standard. The fee in leiu of parkland is calculated to 
purchase parkland that cannot be dedicated. It is preferable to have the parkland within the 
development so that it can satisfy needs of the residents living within the development.  


The city currently has 130.64 acres of active use parkland. This is 4.12 acres short of meeting the 
national standard of 10.5 acres per 1,000 residents.  


 


Source: 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 


 


Slopes 







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Having areas with little to no slope allows for easier development for park amenities such as park 
shelters and playgrounds. Ball fields also require relatively flat areas. The use area for a full-size soccer 
field can be up to 95 yards wide and 140 yards long or 2.75 acres. A neighborhood park can be as small 
as 3 acres. Slopes of less than 5% also provide for compliance with ADA for pathways.  


 


Street Frontages 


There are many reasons to require the provision of street frontage along City parks, including: 
 


· Accessibility – To ensure that public parks are easily accessible from all directions. 
· Safety – Having a high level of visibility, or “eyes on the park,” increases safety for park visitors. 
· Crime Prevention – Similar to safety, having a high degree of park visibility decreases the 


incidents of crime such as graffiti. 
· Parking – Having street frontage and on-street parking can provide a tremendous amount of 


parking for park visitors.  
· Boundaries – In places where private backyards back up to public parks there is a tendency for 


the private backyards, and related items such as sheds and personal storage, to encroach onto 
the public land. 


· Recognition – It is important the public lands that are provided to meet the recreational needs 
of the community be easily identifiable and recognizable as public spaces where everyone is 
welcome. 


 
However, there are many reasons why having a significant amount of street frontage may 
not be feasible and/or desirable, including: 
 


· Safety – Vehicle traffic associated with street adjacency may present a hazard to children and 
pets playing in parks. 


· Resource Impacts - Vehicle use, and related impacts such as leaking oil or the transport of 
noxious weed seed, can negatively impact resource- or critical land-based parks. 


· Noise Impacts – Vehicle noise can be detrimental to a park experience, especially if parks are 
used as an escape and an opportunity to enjoy nature.  


· Visual impacts – The sight of vehicles can negatively impact the aesthetic qualities of a park, and 
therefore diminish the enjoyment of the park. 


· Visibility – Some park users may feel safer when private backyards back up to the park rather 
than parked cars. 


· Size – Some parks, especially mini parks, will simply be too small to allow for the provision of 
significant street frontage. 


 


Current Stoughton Neighborhood Park Street Frontage Percentage  


All distances were found using GIS and are approximate.  


Bjoin Park – 1240 LF of street frontage, 2000 LF other frontage, 38% of street frontage. 1350 LF of 
railroad frontage 







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Dunkirk Park – 235 LF of street frontage, 750 LF other frontage, 24% of street frontage. 250 LF of water 
frontage 


East Park – 975 LF of street frontage, 585 LF of other frontage, 63% of street frontage. 


Lowell Park (Baseball Diamond Area) – 920 LF of street frontage, 335 LF of other frontage, 73% of street 
frontage. 


Lowell Park (Playground & Garden Area) – 1115 LF of street frontage, 3100 LF of other frontage, 26% of 
street frontage. 


Nordic Ridge Park – 605 LF of street frontage, 1530 LF of other frontage, 28% of street frontage.  


Norse Park – 850 LF of street frontage, 1600 LF of other frontage, 35% of street frontage 


Schefelker Park – 205 LF of street frontage, 3500 LF of other frontage, 6% of street frontage 


Veteran’s Park – 940 LF of street frontage, 925 LF of other frontage, 50% of street frontage. 575 LF of 
water frontage  


Virgin Lake Park – 530 LF of street frontage, 2750 LF of other frontage, 16% of street frontage. 


Westview Ridge Park – 1250 of street frontage, 3200 LF of other frontage, 28% of street frontage.  


Area Examples  


Middleton: 


Any land to be dedicated as a requirement of this section shall be reasonably adaptable for the intended 
park and recreational uses and shall be at a location convenient to the people to be served. Factors used 
in evaluating the adequacy of a proposed park and recreation area shall include, but not be limited to, 
size, shape, topography, geography, tree cover, access, and location. The determination of land 
suitability will be at the sole discretion of the Plan Commission acting on the recommendation of the 
Park, Recreation and Forestry Commission. All lands dedicated under this section shall have at least one 
hundred feet of frontage on a public street. 


Fitchburg:   


Fitchburg uses a formula that is attached to this document.  


Linkage 


Goal 1.2.4: Promote bicycle and pedestrian facilities throughout Stoughton and the surrounding areas. 


Objective A: Improve local route connectivity throughout the area to parks, conservancies, schools, local 
business, and regional trails.  


Goal 1.2.8: Stress the benefits of larger neighborhood and community parks that provide a wide range 
of facilities over small playground and tot-lot facilities.  







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Objective E: Stress connectivity of natural corridors and park open spaces to allow for wildlife and user 
movement.  


Connecting parks and open space with trail corridors provides an opportunity for people and wildlife to 
freely move between larger plots of land. They promote physical activity, support economic 
development, and benefit the environment. The trail corridor is a zone that includes the trail and the 
area to the sides.  The 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan provides conceptual routes and 
park locations.  


I was unable to find any specific recommendations on trail corridor widths. The book Greenways: A 
Guide To Planning Design And Development states that the corridor width should be based on the 
objective. There is no minimum and maximum width that can be advised. Setting a minimum width is 
good policy. I contacted Jim Woodford from the WDNR regarding the width and this is what he had to 
say: 


“I’ve heard back from my colleagues here at DNR and we were in agreement that for wildlife 
corridors there really isn’t a set minimum width.  The group’s consensus was it should be 
designed to fit the species you are trying to provide connectivity between larger suitable habitat 
areas.  I did find a fairly complete summary of literature on this topic attached.  Seems like 
Appendix 1 is very complete and after a quick review, my recommendation would be to strive 
for at least a 100’ travel corridor and not go below 50’ in width.  It seems if you go below 50’ you 
wouldn’t be providing suitable travel habitat for many wildlife species at all.” 


Recommended trail tread width is 12 feet for suburban non-motorized users with a 10 feet minimum. A 
2-foot-wide cleared, and graded shoulder on each side is also needed. When rail lines are converted to 
trail use, the state general acquires a 100-foot wide corridor. 


 


Source: Trails for the Twenty First Century, Flink, Olka and Searns  


 


 







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 


 


Source: Toole Design 


Area Example 


Middleton: 


Parkways, Greenways, and Environmental Corridors When parkways, greenways, and environmental 
corridors are to be provided within the proposed plat or certified survey, and they are not officially 
mapped in enough detail to determine the exact dimensions, they shall generally have a minimum width 
of two hundred (200) feet and in no case shall they be less than one hundred (100) feet wide 


 


Park Size & Future Park Expansion 


Goal 1.2.8: Stress the benefits of larger neighborhood and community parks that provide a wide range 
of facilities over small playground and tot-lot facilities.  


Objective B: Communicate the importance of dynamic, multi-purpose parks and recreational facilities as 
a component of Stoughton’s regional draw and economic development potential.  


The 2018 CORP highlighted that the City was 40.92 acres short of community park parkland. Community 
parks are classified as parks over 10 acres in size and are dynamic in nature with the different uses they 
can have.  


If developers place parks so that they can be expanded in the future, then they can be made into 
community park space as the City grows.  


 







Site Selection Criteria 


 Points & Weighting Background Information  


 
Park Dedication & Access Timeline 


The developer’s agreement should include access to the parkland once the fees start to be collected. If 
the fees are collected and cannot be spent on infrastructure for the park, then a situation is created 
where the park cannot be developed to a level of service set by the City. For example, the Stonecrest 
Development has stalled, fees have been collected, and the parkland has not been dedicated. When the 
park is developed the fees won’t cover the current level of service that we have in the park system.  


 







51 West Street Frontage Calculation Using Fitchburg Formula 
 
Fitchburg Formula 
Single Family = Square root of the square footage required to be dedication 
Two Family Residential = Square root of the square footage required to be dedication X .50 
Multi-Family Residential = Square root of the square footage required to be dedication X .13 
 
Stoughton Parkland Dedication Amount  
1468 square feet for each residential dwelling unit 
 
51 West Residential Dwelling Units 
Single Family = 14 Units 
Small Multi-Family = 64 Units 
Large Multi-Family = 286 Units 
 
Single Family Calculation 
14 Units x 1468 square feet = 20,552 square feet 
Square root of 20,552 is 143.4 linear feet  
 
Small Multi-Family Calculation  
64 Units x 1468 square feet = 93,952 square feet 
Square root of 93,952 is 306.5 
306.5 x 0.58 = 177.8 linear feet 
 
Large Multi-Family Calculation  
286 Units x 1468 square feet = 419,848 square feet 
Square root of 419,848 is 648.0  
648.0 x 0.13 = 84.2 linear feet  
 
Total Linear Feet 
Single Family = 143.4 
Small Multi-Family = 177.8 
Large Multi-Family = 84.2 
Total Linear Feet = 405.4 
 


 







9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 1/3


i)
(1)


a.


b.


Street frontage for dedicated parkland.
Street frontage for dedicated parklands shall be provided and paid for by the developer or
subdivider in the amount of 150 lineal feet of frontage or in accord with the following,
whichever is greater.


For development projects or land divisions of less than 80 dwelling units, the developer
or subdivider shall provide frontage in accord with the following table:


Single-family residential 6.0


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


Two-family residential 3.0


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


Multifamily 0.75


lineal


feet per


dwelling


unit


 


For development projects or land divisions of 80 or more dwelling units, lineal
street frontage shall be provided in accord with the following:


Single-family Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated







9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 2/3


(2)


(3)


(4)


Two-family Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated


with this


factor


multiplied


by 0.50


Multifamily Square


root of


the


square


footage


required


to be


dedicated


with this


factor


then


multiplied


by 0.13


 


The council, upon receiving a recommendation from the parks commission and plan
commission, shall have the authority to allow alternative dimensions for frontagesand the park
if it can be found that the objectives of access and visibility can be fulfilled.
In calculating the required frontage for multifamily residential projects the maximum number of
two bedroom units allowed under the zoning ordinance shall be used unless a different
number is committed to by agreement with the city or by city approved deed restriction.
Areas zoned to the SmartCode District, and which meet the minimum acreage for the specific
community unit type in chapter 23 shall not be subject to this section, but instead shall
provide and install street frontage as required for all civic or open space lands through the



https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH23SMDI





9/11/2020 Chapter 24 - LAND DIVISION | Code of Ordinances | Fitchburg, WI | Municode Library


https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH24LADI_S24-9REIM 3/3


approved regulating plan. For situations where the community unit type is less than the
required minimum size in chapter 23, the above regulations of this subsection (i) shall apply.



https://library.municode.com/wi/fitchburg/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIIILAUSDE_CH23SMDI



		Park Design Guidelines

		Overview

		Purpose

		Mission Statement

		Goals



		General Planning and Design Policies

		Site Selection and Planning Principles

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Neighborhood Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Mini Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Special-Use Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Trail Corridors & Greenways

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Natural Areas

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features and Amenities to Consider

		Features and Amenities to Avoid





		Guidance for Developers

		Design and Review Process for City Parks

		Site Evaluation Report

		Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting

		Minimum Criteria

		Base Criteria







		Point & Weighting System Background

		51 West Street Frontage Calculation Using Fitchburg Formula

		Fitchburg Street Frontage






 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA – SPECIAL MEETING 
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Wednesday, October 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/379740981  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (571) 317-3122  
 
Access Code: 379-740-981  
 
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting 
starts: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/379740981 
 
 
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Joyce Tikalsky, Tim Swadley 
 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
C il M b   


Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from September 15, 2020 
 
3 Communication  
 Director’s Report   
  
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4   Park Design Guidelines (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5 Council Goals (Discussion & Possible Action)  
 
6 Yahara Riverfront Development – Trail and Bridge Preliminary Design 


Review (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
7   Future Agenda Items    
   Park Design Guidelines  
   51 West Development Parkland Dedication  
   Park Impact Fee & Fee in Lieu of Study  
   ADA Transition Plan  
     







Item #   ADJOURNMENT  








XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


XXX


###


SS


SS


SS


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SS


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SA
N


SA
N


SA
N


SA
N


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W


G


G


G


G


G


G
G


G
G


G


O
H


UT


UT UT


WVWV


UT


GV


GVSEPV


UT


UT


GUY


WV


POST


UT


UT


POST
POSTPOST


POST


SHEET


JOB NO.


PROJECT MGR.


N
O


.
R


E
V


I
S


I
O


N
S


D
A


T
E


:


A S S O C I A T E S


®


Y
A


H
A


R
A


 
R


I
V


E
R


F
R


O
N


T
 
C


O
N


C
E


P
T


4
T


H
 
S


T
R


E
E


T
 
T


O
 
7


T
H


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


D
A


N
E


 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1040.129


ZRS



Simpson, Zach

Callout

Proposed Pedestrian Bridge



Simpson, Zach

Callout

Proposed Trail



Simpson, Zach

Arrow



Simpson, Zach

Polygon Line



Simpson, Zach

Callout

Future Trail (by others)



Simpson, Zach

Arrow



Simpson, Zach

Polygon Line



Simpson, Zach

Polygon Line



Simpson, Zach

Polygon Line





		Sheets and Views

		River Side Park

		Plot











